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Kite, Robin

From: McGuire, Paula

Sent: Thursday, December 13, 2007 12:20 PM

To: Kite, Robin

Subject: FW: Rep. Gunderson Co-sponsorship of LRB 1099/2 "The Youth Sporting Opportunities Act"

Attachments: 07-10992.pdf
Hello Robin--
In Senator Wirch's bill that would allow the DNR to set the hunting age, he would like to include the target shooting
--Thanks! PrOVisionm (n LRE /099/ 2

From: Bruhn, Mike

Sent: Tuesday, December 11, 2007 3:52 PM

To: *Legislative Assembly Democrats; *Legislative Assembly Republicans; *Legislative Senate Democrats;
*Legislative Senate Republicans

Subject: Rep. Gunderson Co-sponsorship of LRB 1099/2 "The Youth Sporting Opportunities Act"

DATE: December 11, 2007

TO: All Legislators

FROM: Representative Scott Gunderson

RE: Co-sponsorship of LRB 1099/2 re: the minimum age for hunting and

possessing a firearm, age specific restrictions for hunting and on
possessing a firearm while hunting, requirements for obtaining a hunting
certificate of accomplishment, establishing a hunting mentorship
program, and granting rule-making authority.

Removing the barriers to participation in order to increase the sporting opportunities available to
the youth of Wisconsin is an issue that is very important to me. Recent studies have illustrated that the
State of Wisconsin is in the bottom 20% for hunter replacement with only 0.53 new hunters for every
hunter the state loses, and the biggest obstacle to youth hunter recruitment in Wisconsin is our restrictive
age requirement. Most studies show that children, by the time they reach 12 years old, have already
made up their minds about recreational activities, and if they have not begun a recreational activity by
the age of 12, it is highly unlikely they will ever take up that activity. I am, therefore, introducing the
“Youth Sporting Opportunities Act,” in order to increase the sporting opportunities for the youth of
Wisconsin.

This Legislation would create a mentored hunting program, which would lower the hunting age
from 12 to 10 years-old under very specific circumstances. The minor would have to be accompanied
by a parent or guardian and both would be required to hold a valid hunting license. Also, the minor and
the parent or guardian would be allowed to have only one firearm or bow in their joint possession while

hunting, and the minor would have to remain within arms reach-of the adult to.ensure the minor is
£
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actively being taught how to hunt safely, correctly, and ethically. Finally, this legislation would
remove the restrictions on possession and control of a firearm by persons who are under the age of 12
when target practicing if they are accompanied by a parent or guardian.

Currently, there are 32 states that do not have any minimum hunting age specified by state law
including Iowa, Michigan, and Minnesota.

The legislative Analysis is below. If you are interested in co-sponsoring this legislation, please
contact my office (6-3363) by Thursday, December 20, 2007.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

This bill makes various changes to the laws relating to restrictions on hunting
and firearm possession and establishes a hunting mentorship program.

Accompaniment by parent or guardian

Under current law, a person who is the minimum hunting age but under the age of 16 may hunt
or have a firearm in his or her possession or control if the person is accompanied by a parent or guardian
and if he or she meets certain other requirements. This bill specifies that such a person may also hunt or
have a firearm in his or her possession or control if the person is accompanied by a person who is at
least 18 years old and who has been designated by the person’s parent or guardian.

Mentorship program

Current law requires, with certain exceptions, that every person who obtains a hunting approval
must have a certificate of accomplishment issued by the Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
indicating that he or she has successfully completed the hunter education program or bow hunter
education program established by DNR. Current law also generally prohibits hunting and firearm
possession by any person under the age of 12. For persons who are older than 12 but under the age of
16, current law allows hunting and firearm possession but imposes certain restrictions that vary
depending on the person’s age.

This bill creates a new exception to the general requirement that a person obtain a certificate of
accomplishment in order to obtain a hunting approval. The bill also lowers the minimum hunting age
from 12 years of age to ten years of age for persons who hunt under the hunting mentorship program
established in this bill. The bill authorizes a person who is at least ten years of age to hunt without
obtaining a certificate of accomplishment and to possess or control a firearm while hunting if the person
has a valid hunting approval and is hunting with a qualified mentor.

Under the hunting mentorship program, to qualify as a mentor, a person must be 18 years of age
or older and be the parent or guardian of the person for whom he or she is serving as a mentor or be
authorized by the parent or guardian to serve as the mentor. The bill provides that at all times when
serving as a mentor, the mentor must be within arm’s reach of the person for whom he or she is serving
as a mentor, must have a current valid hunting approval, and must have obtained a certificate of
accomplishment or be exempt from the requirement to obtain a certificate of accomplishment. The bill
provides that a mentor may take only one person hunting at a time and specifies that a mentor and a
person who is hunting with the mentor may jointly have only one firearm, bow, or crossbow while
hunting. The bill also requires DNR to issue to each person to whom DNR issues a hunting approval a

PR WiaTaYslel
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pamphlet that contains hunter safety information if the person is not required to obtain a
certificate of accomplishment and is authorized to hunt with a mentor. The bill authorizes DNR to
promulgate rules lowering the minimum age for hunting with a mentor if DNR determines that hunting
by persons younger than ten years of age does not present a safety risk. The bill provides that DNR may
make this determination only after considering existing studies and data on the safety risk of hunting and
firearm possession by persons who are under ten years of age.

Target practice

The bill also creates a new exception to the restrictions that apply to firearm possession by
persons who are under a specified age. The bill provides that those age restrictions do not apply to a
person who uses a firearm in target practice if the person is accompanied by his or her parent or
guardian or by a person who is at least 18 years of age who is designated by the parent or guardian.

Proof of compliance

Under current law, an applicant for a hunting approval may show compliance with the hunter
education requirement by presenting his or her certificate of accomplishment when submitting an
application for a hunting approval. Alternatively, the person may prove compliance by presenting an
approval authorizing hunting that was issued to him or her within 365 days before submitting the
application or that was issued to him or her for a hunting season that ended within 365 days before
submitting the application. This bill requires that when presenting a previously issued hunting approval
as proof of compliance, the approval must contain the applicant’s hunter education certificate number.

For further information see the stafe fiscal estimate, which will be printed as an appendix to this
bill.
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The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assem-
bly, do enact as follows:

SECTION #. \

[rev: 9/18/06 DF02(fm)]



10

11

f;‘/

2007 - 2008 LEGISLATURE LR%@SM
MGG&RNK #vj&jld:rs

LFB:...... Rushmer — Munter mentorship program and weapons in vehicles
v

For 2007-09 BUDGET —- N T/READY For INTRODUCTION
SEN T AMENDMENT ,
NATE BILL 40

WWMMM

j‘@SE(:’I‘IOI\J ?% 29.184 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.184 (1) (b) “Minor” means a person who is at least 12 years of age, or the age
specified by the department by rule under s. 29.592 (5). whichever age is lower, but

!

under 18 years of age.”

e

SECTION 7 07 : 29.184 (6) (b) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

29.184 (8) (b) 1. The applicant is at least 12 years old,_or the age specified by

{
the department by rule under s. 29.592 (5), whichever age is lower.”.)”




16
17
18
19

20

21

22

23

24

LRBb0284/4

2007 - 2008 Legislature MGG&RNK:wlj&jld:rs

29.235 (1) IssuANCE. A resident conservation patron license shall be issued
subject to ss. 29.024 and 54.25 (2) (c) 1. d. by the department to any resident 12 years

old or older, or the age specified by the department by rule under s. 29.592 (5).

whichever age is lower. and who applies for the license. A nonresident conservation
patron license shall be issued subject to s. 29.024 by the department to any person

12 years old or older, or the age specified by the department by rule under s. 29.592

/

(5). whichever age is lower. who is not a resident, and who applies for the license.

SECTION ﬁ% 29.304 (4m) of the statutes is created to read:
29.304 (4m) HUNTING MENTORSHIP PROGRAM. The prohibition specified in sub.
(1) (a) and the restrictions specified in subs. (1) (b) to (d), (2), and (3) do not apply to

a person who is hunting with a mentor and who complies with the requirements

.
specified under s. 29.592 5’ W/

W Ime I“T“«aﬁterm N

*SECTION %ffv% 29 563 (2) (a) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

29.563 (2) (a) 4. Small game issued to }2—-year—elds-te-17—year—elds persons

who are vounger tha ,8 ars of age: $6.25.f!

SECTION %Zj&g 'g29.563 (2) (a) 5g. of the statutes is amended to read:

i
29.563 (2) (a) 5g. Deer issued to-12—year—olds-to-17—year—olds persons who are
r
younger than 18 years of age: $17.25§§}§M

‘% /gage 472, hne 137 after that line‘insert:
{%SECTION g% 29.563 (2) (a) 8m. of the statutes is amended to read:
29.563 (2) (a) 8m. Archer issued to 12-year—olds-to-17—year-elds persons who

J o
are younger than 18 years of age: $17 ,25.
172, line 15: W
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S
é SECTION %ﬁ%} 29.563 (2m) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.563 (2m) HUNTING APPROVALS FOR CERTAIN NONRESIDENTS. The fees for

hunting approvals for a 12-te-17-year—eld person who is younger than 18 years of age,

who is not a resident, and who exhibits proof that his or her parent is a resident shall
be the same as the fees for hunting approvals for residents under sub. (2) (a) and (c).
SECTION ’Z,ii% 29 563 (4) (a) 1m. of the statutes is amended to read:
29.563 (4) (a) Im. Sports issued to 12—year—olds-to-17—year—olds persons who

are younger than 18 vears of age: $32.25 or a greater amount at the applicant’s

option. -
SECTION ?iﬁ{[é/;QSGS (4) (a) 2m. of the statutes is amended to read:

29.563 (4) (a) 2m. Conservation patron issued to 12—year—olds-te-17—year—olds
persons who are younger than 18 years of age: $70.25 or a greater amount at the

applicant’s option. .
SECTION%%&% 29.563 (4) (b) 1m. of the statutes is amended to read:
29.563 (4) (b) 1m. Sports issued to 12—year—olds-te-17-year—olds persons who

are younger than 18 years of age: $33.25 or a greater amount at the applicant’s

option. A
SECTION ?i% 29.563 (4) (b) 2m. of the statutes is amended to read:
29.563 (4) (b) 2m. Conservation patron issued to +2—year—olds-te-17-year—olds

persons who are younger than 18 years of age: $72.25 or a greater amount at the
i

applicant’s option... .

Y . e 5,
2, line-207 after that-linednsert™ ™~

SECTION ?@% 29.592 of the statutes is created to read:
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29.592 Hunting mentorship program. (1) A person who is at least 12 years
of age, or the age specified by the department by rule under sub. (5), whichever age
is lower, may hunt in this state without obtaining a certificate of accomplishment
under s. 29.591 and may, while hunting, possess or control a firearm if all of the
following apply:

(a) At all times when hunting, the person is within arm’s reach of a mentor who
meets the qualifications under sub. (2).

(b) The person holds a hunting approval.

(2) No person may serve as a qualified mentor for a hunter unless the person
meets all of the following requirements:

(@) The person is 18 years of age or older.

(b) The person is the parent or guardian of the person for whom he or she is
serving as a mentor or is authorized by the parent or guardian to serve as a mentor.
This requirement does not apply to a person serving as a mentor for a person who
is 18 years of age or older.

(c) At all times when serving as a mentor, the person is within arm’s reach of
the person for whom he or she is serving as a mentor.

(d) The person has been issued a certificate of accomplishment under s. 29.591,
or under s. 29.595 if the person is serving as a mentor for hunting elk, unless the
person was born before January 1, 1973, and is not required to obtain a certificate
of accomplishment.

(e) The person holds a current valid hunting approval.

(3) A mentor under this section may take only one person, for whom he or she

is serving as a mentor, hunting at a time.
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without a bo}f/m firing position. /

2007 — 2008 Legislature -5~ MGG&RNLKR\SSES%Q

(4) The department shall issue to each person to whom the department issues
a hunting approval a pamphlet, developed by the department, that contains hunter
safety information if the person is not required to obtain a certificate of
accomplishment under s. 29.591 and is authorized to hunt with a mentor under this
section.

(5) The department may promulgate rules lowering the minimum age specified
in sub. (1) for purposes of this section.

SECTION @;@{%/25.593 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.593 (1) (a) Except as provided under subs. (2), (2m) and (3) and s. 29.592 (1),
no person born on or after January 1, 1973, may obtain any approval authorizing

i
hunting unless the person is issued a certificate of accomplishment under s. 29.591.@

%2}3“4W e brafter that line-inse e

,1.»/

(intro.) and amendé\ﬁwio read:

167.31 (1) (b) (inth-}*{Encased” means any of the following: -~

v

SECTION 2913e. 167.31 (1) (b) 2. of ghg é%h(gtes is created to read:
167.31 (1) (b) 2. In the case 0;} abow or a cro;;E’\% it is enclosed in a carrying

case.

167.31 (1) (g}” In the case of a crossbow, having the cmssw uncocked f

s e
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1 SEC'FLQN 2913j. 167.31 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read: E
2 | 167.31 (z)’*(% Except as provided in sub. (4), no person may place, posse |

ransport a fn"earm bow or crossbow in or on a motorboat with the motogffunnmg
Vs
4 unless the firearm is unlmaded or-unless-the-bow-or, unless the crossboy is unloaded

H
?

5 gnd encased, or unless the b‘@w is unstrung or is-enclosed-in-a

case encased.

6 SEcTION 2913k. 167. 31 Z) ( ) of the statutes is amendet ‘to read
7 167.31 (2) (b) Except as provmjed in sub. (4), no pe;ﬁ’l may place, possess or
8 transport a firearm;—bew or crossbow in or on a v /}'ﬁd& unless the firearm or
. ;
10
12 %encased or beyond the arm’s reach of thef ;Derator and the occupants of the vehicle.
| 13 SECTION 2913m. 167.31 (2) (bﬁj of the statutes is reated to read:
14 167.31 (2) (bn) Except as pyowded in sub. (4), no person may place, possess, or ?
15 éransport abow in a Veh1clef§h;t is moving or has a running mQ}or unless the bow
16 és encased or unstrung orﬁ’j;ﬂess the bow is beyond the arm’s reac 1 of the operator
17 and the occupants of ghé vehicle. | g
18 SECTION 2913‘?1 167.31 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read: ”
19 167.31 (3) (a) Except as provided in sub. (4), no person may place, possess or
20 transport a’ f1rearm bow, or crossbow in or on an aircraft, unless the flrearm or
21
22
23 SECTION ; 69.20 (1) (a) of the statutes ]NS amended to read:
24 169.20 (1) (a) The department shall issue a bird dog training license to any
25 individual who is at least 12 years of age. or the age specified by the department by
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. yd
that is completely zipped, snapped;buckled. tied. or otherwise fastened with no part
., prd *
. ” N:;%i‘x
- of the firearm exposed.”. N

enclosed in a casé that is expressly made for the purpose of contammgzg firearm and

e
| that is completely zipped. snapped. buckled. tied. or otherwise fastened withno part |
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rule under s. 29.592 (5). whichever age is lower, and who files a proper application

and whe pays the apphcable fee.
SECTION g@i&'@ 169 20 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

169.20 (2) (@) The department shall issue a hound dog training license to any

individual who is at least 12 years of age, or the age specified by the department by

rule under s. 29.592 (5), whichever age is lower, and who pays the applicable fee.

E
SECTION @é)@&é 169.33 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:
169.33 (2) (d) An individual who applies for a bird dog training license or a

hound dog training license shall be at least 12 years of age. or the age specified by

the department by rule under s. 29 592 (5). whichever age is lower TW/

R

“SEE;[‘ION 3834c. 941.237 (1) (c) of the statutes 15 ﬁmended to read:

941.237 (1) o). Encased has-the- meanang—gfveﬂ -in-s-167-31+(1)—(b) means

o,

%ff
i

9. Page 1655, line 24: afte; that line inserts.

“SEcTION 3836C. 948 605 (1) (a) of the statutes 151\@\ mended to read:

948.605 (1) (a) ’Encased h&&{h&%ﬂe&ﬂﬂl—g»g}%%Hﬂ%‘w&)) means /

X V

b

- of the fit rearm exposed.”. >/

. eSS o g (END)
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INSERT RELATING CLAUSE

relating to: age-specific restrictions on hunting and possessing a firearm; requirements for
obtaining a hunting certificate of accomplishment; establishing a hunting mentorship
program; and granting rule-making authority.
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INSERT ANALYSIS

Current law generally prohibits hunting and firearm possession by any person
under the age of 12. Current law allows persons who are at least 12 years old but
under the age of 16 to hunt and possess a firearm but imposes certain restrictions
that vary depending on the person’s age. Current law also requires, with certain
exceptions, that every person who obtains a hunting approval must have a certificate
of accomplishment issued by the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) indicating
that he or she has successfully completed the hunter education program or bow
hunter education program established by DNR. an

This bill establishes a hunting mentorship program that creates amew
exception to the general requirement that a person obtain a certificate of
accomplishment ifLorder to obtain a hunting approval. The bill authorizes a person
who is at least 12 years of age to hunt without obtaining a certificate of
accomplishment and to possess or control a firearm while hunting if the person has
a valid hunting approval and is hunting with a qualified mentor. The bill also
authorizes DNR to promulgate rules lowering the minimum age at which a person
may hunt a qualifying mentor.

Under the hunting mentorship program established in the bill, to qualify as a
mentor, a person must be 18 years of age or older and be the parent or guardian of
the person for whom he or she is serving as a mentor or be authorized by the parent
or guardian to serve as the mentor. The bill provides that at all times when serving
as a mentor, the mentor must be within arm’s reach of the person for whom he or she
is serving as a mentor, must have a current valid hunting approval, and must have
obtained a certificate of accomplishment or be exempt from the requirement to obtain
a certificate of accomplishment. The bill provides that a mentor may take only one
person hunting at a time. The bill also requires DNR to issue to each person to whom
DNR issues a hunting approval a pamphlet that contains hunter safety information
if the person is not required to obtain a certificate of accomplishment and is
authorized to hunt with a mentor.

For further information see the state fiscal estimate, which will be printed as
an appendix to this bill.
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This bill creates a target practice exception to the restrictions that apply
to firearm possession by persons who are under a specified age. The bill provides that
those age restrictions do not apply to a person who uses a firearm in target practice
if the person is accompanied by his or her parent or guardian or by a person who is
at least 18 years of age who is designated by the parent or guardian.

INSERT 2-12

J

SECTION %1 29.304 (5) (title) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

29.304 (5) (title) EXCEPTIONS.

SECTION%? 29.304 (5) of the statutes is renumbered 29.304 (5) (a).

SECTION(%? 29.304 (5) (b)Jof the statutes is created to read:

29.304 (5) (b) The restrictions on the possession aid;;ontrol of a firearm under
sub. (1) do not apply to a person using a firearm in target practice if he or she is
accompanied by his or her parent or guardian or by a person at least 18 years of age

who is designated by the parent or guardian.

+-



Parisi, Lori

From: Kite, Robin

Sent: Tuesday, February 05, 2008 4:18 PM
To: Parisi, Lori

Subject: FW: LRB-3612--Youth Hunting
Attachments: 20080204110321863.pdf

2008020411032186
3.pdf (387 °KB)... R
Lori:

Please jacket LRB-3612 for Senator Wirch's office.
Thanks.

- riginal Message-—

From: McGauire, Paula

Sent: Tuesday, February 05, 2008 4:15 PM
To: Kite, Robin

Subject: FW: LRB-3612-Youth Hunting

Hello, Robin-

Can I get this bill jacketed for introduction? Thanks!

Did you see that the carbon monoxide bill was passed unanimously by the Senate last week~1 would
have never thought that would have happened, but it shows all your hard work, and million changes
really paid oft="THANKS!

Paula

—=Original Message---—

From: McGuire, Paula

Sent: Monday, February 04, 2008 11:17 AM

To: *Legislative Assembly Democrats; *Legislative Assembly Republicans; *Legislative Senate

Democrats; *Legislative Senate Republicans
Subject: LRB-3612-Youth Hunting

TO: Legislative Colleagues
FROM: Senator Robert Wirch
DATE: 2/4/08

RE: LRB-3612



